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501, 10808 — 99 Avenue

Edmonton, AB T5K 0G5

Attention: Tannis Brown, Director of Settlement
Dear Madam:

Re: An application for determination brought by United Nurses of Alberta and Jessica
Wakeford affecting Alberta Health Services
Board File No. GE-07762

This letter is in response to AHS’s letter of May 7, 2018, expressing concerns about the Board’s
jurisdiction and the appropriateness of the forum in this matter.

In this case, the constitutional questions arise in the context of UNA’s determination application.
While the Court of Queen’s Bench can address constitutional questions, only the Board has
jurisdiction to resolve the determination application which makes the Board not only the most
appropriate but the only forum available to have that application heard.

It is also preferable to have the Board resolve the constitutional questions. Those questions
directly engage the Board’s labour relations expertise, the Board can schedule hearing dates
earlier than can the Court, and it is more efficient to have the Board decide both the
constitutional issues and UNA’s determination application. Indeed, doing so allows evidence
adduced with respect to the constitutional issues to also be relied upon in the determination
application. The alternative, having the Court decide the constitutional issue first and then having
the Board decide the determination application, would be inefficient and result in significant
duplication and delays, and the lengthy and continuing denial of Ms. Wakeford’s ability to
exercise her right to collective action.

Moreover, UNA is under no obligation to seek a determination with respect to all of its
bargaining units. Nor is Ms. Wakeford obligated to apply to the Court for a broad constitutional
declaration affecting all Nurse Practitioners in the province.

As AHS acknowledges, the Board has jurisdiction with respect to constitutional questions. While
a finding in this case would not automatically apply to other employees or employers, if the
Board finds that the exclusion of Nurse Practitioners is unconstitutional in this case, presumably
this would be persuasive, although not binding, in subspe(;l;gent similar cases. This is one of the
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reasons the intervenors seek participation in this matter and one of the reasons UNA did not
object to the intervenors.

In this case the Applicants have chosen the Board to pursue these applications because it is the
most appropriate forum for them and their counterparts. The suggestion to instruct the Applicants
to start the process anew in a different forum, though that forum is not capable of addressing
both applications, would only benefit other parties and would serve to unnecessarily extend
delays in these applications.

This is not a case in which similar applications have been brought in different venues; no other
matter exists in a different forum. Therefore AHS’s question regarding the most appropriate
forum is theoretical. The only appropriate question before the Board in these circumstances is
whether the Board has jurisdiction, and no party has provided an objection to the Board’s
jurisdiction. Accordingly, UNA’s position is that this is the most appropriate forum for its
applications, and indeed it is the only forum for them.

Yours truly,

CHIVERS CARPENTER

KRISTAN A. MCLEOD
(Email: kmcleod@chiverslaw.com)
KM/ljn

c.c..  Alberta Health Services, Attn: Jacqueline Laviolette — via fax (403) 943-0972
Alberta Health Services, Attn: Dennis Holliday/Monica Bokenfohr — via fax (780) 424-
4309
Seveny Scott, Attn: Dan Scott — via fax (780) 638-6062
Health Sciences Association of Alberta, Attn: Laura Hureau — via fax (780) 488-0534
The Alberta Union of Provincial Employees, Attn: William Rigutto/Larry Dawson/Carol
Drennan/Jim Petrie — via fax (780) 930-3393
McLennan Ross LLP, Attn: Christopher J. Lane, Q.C. — via fax (780) 482-9100
Covenant Health, Attn: Michael J. Hughes — via fax (780) 342-8258
Taylor Janis LLP, Attn: Micah A. Kowalchuk — via fax (587) 356-0422
Nurse Practitioners Association of Alberta, Attn: Teddie Tanguay — via mail
Dina Sotiropoulos — via mail
Anthony Falvi — via mail
Kevin Huntley — via mail
The Attorney General of Alberta, Attn: Margaret Unsworth, Q.C./Roderick Wiltshire —
via fax (780) 425-0307
The Attorney General of Canada, Attn: Paul Shenher — via fax (780) 495-5835
United Nurses of Alberta, Attn: David Harrigan/Lee Coughlan — via email
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